
AGENDA & NOTICE 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY 
NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING  
TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2024, 6:30 P.M. 
 
Meeting Location:  County of Los Angeles Hall of Administration 

         Sybil Brand Room 372 
           500 W. Temple Street 
           Los Angeles, CA 90012 
 
To Listen Via Telephone: (669) 444-9171 
           Webinar ID: 843 3844 9426 
 
To View Via Web: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84338449426  

 
To Provide Public Comment: You may submit written public 
comment via email to contact@lanaic.lacounty.gov. Please note 
“LANAIC Public Comment” in subject line. Please submit your 
public comment or documentation as soon as possible but no later 
than 5 p.m. the night before the scheduled meeting. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ALEXANDRA VALDES 
Executive Director 
Tlingit/Athabascan 

 

SHAWN IMITATES DOG, Chairperson  
Lakota 

MARK VILLASEÑOR, Vice Chairperson 
Fernandeño Tataviam 
 
AUDRA WISE, Secretary 
Zia Pueblo & Laguna Pueblo 
 
DENISE ESCOTO, Treasurer 
Northern Cheyenne  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

CHRISSIE CASTRO, Commissioner 
Navajo 

ANDREA N. GARCIA, M.D., Commissioner 
Mandan, Hidatsa, Arikara 

DAWN JACKSON, Commissioner 
Saginaw Chippewa 

MONA MORALES RECALDE, Commissioner 
Gabrieleno Tongva 
 
JOHN ONLY A CHIEF, Commissioner 
Pawnee Nation 
 
 
 

 

 

RUDY ORTEGA JR., Commissioner  
Fernandeño Tataviam 

TED TENORIO, Commissioner                         
Tiguan Nation 
 
CHERI THOMAS, Commissioner 
Quinault/Yurok 

RICH TOYON, Commissioner 
Acjachemen         
 
RENE’ WILLIAMS, Commissioner 
Colville Tribes 
                                        
 
 
 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. INVOCATION & LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
3. ROLL CALL  
4. COMMISSIONER INTRODUCTIONS 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
6. ACTION ITEMS  
6.1. Review and take possible action adopting the December 19, 2023 Los Angeles 

City/County Native American Indian Commission (LANAIC) Unapproved Meeting 
Minutes 

 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84338449426
mailto:contact@lanaic.lacounty.gov


  AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2024, 6:30 P.M. 
 

6.2. Take action establishing the following 2024 Ad Hoc Committees: 2024 Native American 
Heritage Month Ad Hoc Committee, Anniversary of the Indian Citizenship Act, June 2, 
1924 Ad Hoc Committee, FY23-24 Annual Report Ad Hoc Committee, and Legislative 
Agenda Ad Hoc Committee and selecting a chairperson for each ad hoc 

 
7. PRESENTATION  
7.1 Scroll presentation to Commissioner Cheri Thomas for her 16 years of service as the 

LANAIC Supervisorial District 2 appointee, Isela Gracian (Office of Supervisor Holly J. 
Mitchell Senior Deputy, Homelessness & Housing) 

 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS  
8.1 Updates on the 2024 LANAIC Calendar, Commissioner Dawn Jackson  

8.2 Long Beach Native American Heritage Commission Discussion 

8.3 HR 6859: Gabrielino/Tongva Nation Recognition Act of 2023 Discussion  

9.   CHAIR’S REPORT  
9.1 2024 LANAIC Retreat Planning  

10. COMMITTEE & AD-HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS 
10.1 Homelessness Committee  

11. COMMISSIONER GENERAL COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

12. ANNOUNCMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
13. COMMISSION ADJOURNMENT  
Meetings are held in English. If interpretation in other languages or accommodations for persons with 
disabilities are needed, please contact the Commission at 213-738-3241 at least 3 business days before 
the meeting. The meetings of the Los Angeles City/County Native American Indian Commission are 
accessible to persons with disabilities.  
 

Contact: www.lanaic.lacounty.gov, contact@lanaic.lacounty.gov, or (213) 738-3241 



              

 
 
 

 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DECEMBER 19, 2023 
 

 
1 

 

The December 19, 2023, meeting Los Angeles City/County Native American Indian Commission 
(LANAIC) was at Chapter House LA 1707 Glendale Blvd. Los Angeles, CA 90026. 
 
Call to Order 
 
Chairperson Thomas called the meeting to order at 6:46 P.M. and read the Los Angeles County 
Land Acknowledgment.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Present: Chairperson Cheri Thomas 
  Vice Chairperson Chrissie Castro  

Secretary Rene’ Williams 
Treasurer Shawn Imitates Dog 
Andrea Garcia 
John Only A Chief 
Mona Morales Recalde 
Denise Escoto 
Dawn Jackson 
Rudy Ortega Jr. 

   
Absent: Mark Villasenor 

Ted Tenorio 
Rich Toyon 
Audra Wise 

 
Quorum was met. 
 
No staff was present. 
 
Commissioner & Staff Introductions 
 
Commissioners provided brief introductions including their names, appointing office and tribal 
affiliation. 
 
Public Comment  
 
Written public comment was received by email from Carla Hernandez at 5:43 PM on Tuesday, 
December 19, 2023. Chair Cheri Thomas read the public comment. 

Using the DV/SV was not meant to help families but was intended for mentally ill and 
homeless people.I sent a link pertaining to this to Audra Wise a few days ago. In the 
book, Los Angeles 200 Bicentennial celebration ;"in 1836 drunken  Indians were ordered 
to help build more water facilities because the supply of fresh water was low.Townsfolk 



              

 
 
 

 
LOS ANGELES CITY/COUNTY NATIVE AMERICAN INDIAN COMMISSION 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DECEMBER 19, 2023 
 

 
2 

 

guaranteed a continual force of laborers by feeding liquor to Indians until they were 
drunk enough to be indentured to the chain gang". 

Action Items 
 
Review & approval of the Unapproved November 21, 2023 Los Angeles City/County Native 
American Indian Commission (LANAIC) Meeting Minutes 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Rudy Ortega, Jr. and seconded by Commissioner Andrea 
Garcia to approve the unapproved November 21, 2023 LANAIC Meeting minutes as presented. 
The motion passed. 
 
YES Thomas, Castro, Garcia, Morales 

Recalde, Williams, Imitates Dog, Only A 
Chief, Escoto, Ortega 

NO  
ABSTAIN Jackson 
ABSENT Tenorio, Toyon, Villasenor, Wise, 

 
Review and take possible action adopting an LANAIC Bylaws revision that would change 
the number of required annual meetings from 12 to 11 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Chrissie Castro and seconded by Commissioner Shawn 
Imitates Dog to adopt a LANAIC Bylaws revision that would change the number of required annual 
meetings from 12 to 11. 
 
YES Thomas, Castro, Garcia, Morales 

Recalde, Villasenor, Wise, Williams, 
Imitates Dog, Tenorio 

NO  
ABSTAIN Only A Chief 
ABSENT Ortega, Toyon, Escoto, Jackson 

 
Chair’s Report 
 
Brown Act Reminders 
 
Chairperson Cheri Thomas read a statement reminding commissioners about the importance of 
adhering to the Brown Act that was provided by County Counsel. 
 
Commission Adjournment 
Chairperson Cheri Thomas adjourned the meeting at 7:18 PM. 



 

 

Los Angeles City/County Native American Indian Commission  
Proposed 2024 Ad Hoc Committees 

 
 
2024 Native American Heritage Month Ad Hoc Committee 

o Proposed Sunset Date: November 30, 2024 
o Purpose: Provide advisement and direction to the LA County Board of 

Supervisors (BOS), LA City Mayor Karen Bass and LA City Council regarding 
how to commemorate 2024 Native American Heritage Month. 

 

Anniversary of the Indian Citizenship Act, June 2, 1924 Ad Hoc Committee 

o Proposed Sunset Date: June 3, 2024 
o Purpose: Develop recommendations to the BOS, Mayor Karen Bass and LA City 

Council regarding how to commemorate the Anniversary of the Indian Citizenship 
Act.  
 

FY23-24 Annual Report Ad Hoc Committee  

o Proposed Sunset Date: September 30, 2024 
o Purpose: Develop content regarding the work and accomplishments of the 

LANAIC during FY23-24 for the required annual report due to the BOS by 
September 30, 2024. 
 

Legislative Agenda Ad Hoc Committee 

o Proposed Sunset Date: September 30, 2024 
o Purpose: Develop recommended policy positions and justifications for the 

LANAIC to review and possibly recommend to the BOS including in the FY24-25 
County State and Federal Policy Agendas.  
 

 



������ ���	
������������	�� ���	���������
����	������������	��������	��� ��	���� !��	���������������"���#�
$������%&'()*�+,�)-*�.*(/01020)3�+4�(�5()06*�78*90:(,�;+880//0+,����<	=��
����>������������������	��������?�������������������������"�����@	���
��A�	�����������
������	������
������"���<���=��B���������	������	��C�	������	�D��	�����������	��E	�"� �����C����D������	����������������	��@�����	��@	����������@���������	���	����������<���=��B���������	������	�!���������	�������@�	=���������������������������"�	������=���	����@@�	�������	����	"��F��<���=��B���������	����
���	����������������������	�����������������	�����
��������	������	�!���G(:HI9+J,'��=�����������������������������=��
������=��������	����
������#�����	�������	�����C#����D�������	������������������K����������#������	�@�	=����<���=��B���������K��������@���������=��
	����	��������������������@�	�	���������"������������������	��<���=��B���������	���������!�L���MNO������#�����P	=��������@������B����
��� ����CB D�Q��M��K���������
�����������<���=��B��������R�����"���	������	��C<BR�D��������@�������"	=���������"��������@	���
����	������������"����������	"��"�<���=��B��������������������	�����!�����<BR��K�������
�������@����������	�@��=��������"�������	��������<���=��B����������������	�������������!�L���M������<BR��K��������"����������������	�����	��F������<BR���	�������������	�����A���������������K����<���=��B����������������������K��������	=����!���������	K����������������������������	���A�������	��������	��	����������������	����������	=��������������	������������������������������@@�	@������������!��L���MNO��E	��B�"���������������	��������	�������������E	��B�"���������S�	�����B��������L�������	������	���K�����K������A���K�������������"������@@������	��	��������"����	�������	������	��	��	�	����@�	
�����	��B��������L����������E	��B�"���������������	����!�B�����	�����	����������	������E	��B�"���������������	�����<���=��B���������	������	��������������=	�����"��	����"������	������@	����T�K	�A��"�K�����U�����"����������#�����������	�����"������T�������	������"�@�������������K��������	��<���=��B���������������!�������	
����������N������E	�"� �����������	��������	@���������	����	����������A���������	����	�����	����������	
������L���"��	���V�	@���������	����	"��F��������=�����������@���������������K������E	�"� �����������	���A�	K���"�������������"��������<���=��B��������������������@�	����"�	@���������������������K��������K�������	��������������"	=�����������������	��!�#�=���������������	�"�	�������#������	K����	����	"��F��L���"��	���V�	@�������!��

WXYZ[\]̂_Y�



��������	��
����������������������������	��������	������������������� �!������

�

"#$%&'()('&�*'+�,$-'%./#+&('&�0*1(2#�,3#4($*'5�('�6*/(7%4'(*�6(1(#5������
���!
�����!���������	�������	���	��8�	!�9�	!�:���
���	���9����	!����������	����8	���
��������������������������	��������	;�<������
���=8������	����
����������������	��������	����	��	������������������������	���!������8��8�������������	����	���8��	��	���������������
���>���;���?�	�@�!����8	���������A���������	��	���
�����!����	8���������������	�����������	��	��
����8	������	������!	B���������������	�C����!��<�	�
��
��8!
������������	������!����	!��������8����	�������������;�<��������
�������	������������	���������
��9������@�������	�;�?�	�@�!����8	����������	��	���	!�!���	��>�
�������������	���������
��8!
�D�����E����	��	����	��D���������	�F��������	�;�G	��
�������	����8	������?�	����	�����H?�	����	����I��������������	���	���8��	����������!	B����
��8!
��
�������JKLMNOPQR�STUVONWM�XMYOWM�XMOZOWZO[U\�]̂U�STUVONWM�XMYOWM�XMOZOWZO[U�O��������������8�������	����	�����������������	����?�	����	�������������	����	�	��������!�	B���	����	����!�	B���	���
����������	���
��	����������������������	�;�G	������?�	����	������������
����
��������	�G	��	��8��8����@�������������!	B��������������	���!������8��8�������������	����	���8��	�;�9��������
�����������_��	������	����������������	�������8��8������	�������	�������	������	�G	�!�	�8��	�	��������	����8���������8�	���	�����G	�!�	�8�����>����
������	��8��������8�������������	����=�������
��������������8��8�����	��������	���������	����	��������������8����	����!���������
���8���;���"#$%&'()('&�*'+�,$-'%./#+&('&�0*1(2#�,3#4($*'5�('�̀%'&�a#*$b���D
������
���
�	������8��������������	�����8	����������������������
��8!
��	��		8�������!	��	�����
��������8	�������	!�����������8	����	�?8���	�>�������
��c�
�@�����;��D
��>����	������
��JOZdQR��������!8�����		8����8��8�������������	�;��D
�����������	���
��������������������	��	��8������8����	�����������������_	!�����������e����8	��������������������	��	��
��
����������
��	����e	�!�	�8�������������9�	!�:���
��	���
��!��������������	�����	��	����	������;������	������������	��?������	�������9�	!�:���
�H�?�9:I�
������
�����!����!��
��	!����������	�G	��	��	�9����	!������	�����	!����8	�����	����	!�����8			!�8	������f��������>>�>�>��������
��<�������F�����
��8!
��
���ghi�jklkmnmo�jpq�rpq;�G	��
���������
�����	��
������	���f���	����������
��������	�G	��	�?�8���� ��!�����������	�G	��	�?�8��	��?��������������	�G	��	�?�8��	����8	����?�8��	����������?�8��	��9����	��@��������	����	������������?�8��	����G	�;���s#2#/%t('&�6%33(55(%'5u�a%*4+5u�*'+�6%33(11##5�('�1b#�6(1v�%7�̀%'&�a#*$b���D
�������8���	����
��������������E��8���>
���8	���	�����
�������������	�����:��������	���������	���������������������������
��������8	��;�D
��������8	��f�������������	�������������������	���	!	!����	�����	�����
�	!����	��!��>�
�����
�����;�wA�����>
����	���������
�������
�����������	���	����������������
��<������	���������������
��������8	��;���



��������	��
����������������������������	��������	������������������� �!������

�

��"���������	��
�������	�������	��
���������������������#�
��	������
�����!	���	����"�!�����$��%
�����������	��	��"��&�'()(*+,-.�/0112..20,3�4)526.�/0112..20,�7�
�����8��9"��	�:�����	���������	���	���
���������	��	�;���	��	��<���$����=	��������������������
������������
��9"��	�:�����	���������	�#������	���������������	�>?"����	��9"��	�:�����	���������	��	��#���������������
��9����
�@�������	������
������������
������A�	�!��$�%
���������	������B���#�
���B	!����������������������	����	������
��������"	����	��?"����
"��	�������	����	��������C"�������"����	��"�	!��������?"����	������	�����	�������������������"����������"	������"���	��	��?"����	��������C"�������������"�����	������	��"��!��	�"���	�����������	������!��"��������������������"�
���"��$��@"�	!��
���������	�������
�����
�����������	�������������������
�������	�	�������	!�	������	����?"����������"�����������
��������"	��$��=	����
�����
������������
�����"��������	!�	�����#����!��������
�	���!	������	����������	�������	��������	!�#������������B����"��#�
��
��#��B������	��������
���D�������	������
������������������$��%�����������#��������	����
���	!�	!������D������������	��	������������������
��������	������$������D����	�����"	���������	�������	���"�
�������������E�����������7	��"�����"����������������8��A�����C"����	��������	!������������������������	���������!���������������"	����"�����
��	�����!�������	������$���FGHIJ�KL�MNNOPQRSGTJ�UROJVT�GWX�YWXROJVT�ZP[T�P\�ZPSSR[[RPW[�ZPSSR[[RPW� ]TG\\�]̂ NNPOT�_�̀TaJO�ZP[T[� UROJVT�ZP[T[� YWXROJVT�ZP[T[�b�����	���������	� c����	���������	������=d��c��������	�����	��� e�ff�g��� b������>?"����	��9"��	�:�����	���������	� c� ��!����h�������d�c��������	�h���	��� e�������� eg������>�
����������	dd�c�>�
���������d�c�������	������
������A�	�!����c�@��"�������A�	�!���c�@��"������������	���c�����B��	������c��������	�h���	��� e����g��� e��g�g����������	��	�;���	��	��<���� c� ��!����h�������d�c��������	�h���	���c�����"	����	���������	���>	!�!���	��e�ig����� eg������d:������	����"��j�����������������������
���������	��dd>�
����������	������
�������������	��	���
������
����	�	��������	"�������������������������������������	�����	!���	��>�
��������������!���������C�������	���������$�����������������	�����
��"!
��
�����������	������
���������	��	�;���	��	��<������
�������B����!	���	�������	������"����������	!���!��
����������������	�	����	��"��#����
���



��������	��
����������������������������	��������	������������������� �!��"���

�


�	�����
������#	���	�$
�
�����	��	������������%�&���	���������
	!��
���������	�����������'������������������������������	����	�!���������	�����	!���	����������$
�
�������������	��������	�	��������	����������	����		�����$���������������%�(
��#!
��
�����������	������
�����������	���������	��������#	������	���
���	�)�����	�����#��#�����������	������������	�����������#��	�������$%���*+,-.-/0,12�3+-,-04�567,7��(
��������8#�������
��	�)�����	�����#��#�����#	�	!�����#�������������	������#�����	�����������
��������	�������������	%�(�����������$��#��	��������������������'��$	��#�������	����������	��	�����������������	�!���	���	�����	���������#������$
�
�������
���������	��	�9���	��	��:�������������������;<�����%�(
��;<�����������������
����������=��	!��������	���
�#������	������
��������!
�����	�$����>���������������������	�����=��	!�$��'��	�������������%���9
����
������������������������	��
���	�)���?	������������#	�����'�	������
�����������	������
���������	��	�9���	��	��:�������������'	�$���!���
�����������������������#�#���	�$��������	����������������������	�%�@�$������$��
�������	��
����
�����������#�����
���#	�	!���	���	������#	�����'�	������
���������	��
�#��������
�����	������	��������������������#�#����������������%�A	������	�����
��	�����	���#���8#�	���#	�	!��������������
���������	��	�9���	��	��:������
��B8#���������$���������#������#��	�����		!���;�<������������)�#��	!�!��	���$����������
��������	���������	��	��
��C���#�����9���	��	��:���%�� DEFGH�IJ�KLMNONPEMHQ�RLNMNEG�STUMU�RMHV� KVTWLM� ��!����C��������XY44Z,-[1�� ;��\����%�����������(�����������	����������	���	������#	����	!�!���	���������� ;������%�������#	���]��������	���B	!�!���	��*.,-̂-,-17�_̀Y//4-17a�b662a�.6[[-77-6+1c�,c0-+-+de�� ;�<����%���DTMEG� ;�f�������*+,-.-/0,12�g+d6-+d�567,7��C#���		!��	�����8#�������#�����	!����������	�$�����8#��������	�#����	!�	!����#��#�����#���������������%������	����#	�	!�$������	�����������������	�������	����	������������#�
������	�#���	��	�������
����
���������	�����	���������	�#������$��'%�&���$��������������'��$	�����	���������������	!�	!��#	�	!�	����%���������#������	��	����



��������	��
����������������������������	��������	������������������� �!��"���

�

	�����������������	�!���	���	�����	���������#��������������������$"������	������	����%��������	������������������&'���� � ()*+,�-.�/012324)1,5�6078207�98:1:�;1,<� /<8=01�>���	���?$"��@�A��������	����@������	�
�B�� $C����'��� ��!����>��������DEFFGHIJK�� $��L����'�������#	���M��������	���N	!�!���	����������?>#��������������������	������		!B�� $�"����'���(81)+� $�L"������O	��#��������������P�������
�����&�����Q��$�R������	��	�S�����	��$�L"�����	����#��#����������������������	���������
����������	'�%
���������P���������#���������	��#���	������	����	������������������������	�������	�����	������	����P#����	��������������#�������T�����U�����	�#�������	������	�	!�?U��B'���VWJJIXXIWY�ZK[KFW\JKYH�]IJKFIYK��%
�����	�����&��#��	����
��������	���������������������	�&�����������������	'�� ;<4+,<,01)1280�(2<,+20,�6*̂,312_,�̀a�����#	����#�����
��	��N	!�!���	��(2<,bc)<,a�L���	�
�� d���������	��	�S�����#	�������#�������	���������%����d�N������
��	���������%����d� ���	���&�
�����#	�����!�	e���	�������	�#����#�����
��	���	!�!���	��d����e���������#������������	��	������������������#	����#�����
����������	���#����?�B�d�O	���������#	��������������#���
��������#	����������������������	���d�N	!�!��&�
�����#	������������������	�&
���	������	����#������������������	������
���d�T���	�&
����
������#	���&�	�����������������	��



��������	��
����������������������������	��������	������������������� �!��"���

�

#$%&'()*&�+,�-�	�
�������.	!�!���	��/)0&1230&,��45���	�
�� 6��	���7���������8�������9����:�;��	������9	����9�����
�<=<>?@�?A�B>C<D@?E>C�?F<�GAHHB>I?JK@�GAHH<>?@���!���	!���9��������������	�����?F<�LAHHI@@IA>K@��9������	��
�������	��
�M��
���������	���9������������
�����6���������9	����	!�!���	���	���9������������8����<@?ENOI@F�D<GAHH<>CE?IA>@�PAD�?F<�LAHHI@@IA>K@��������������������9��9�����9��������	���9	���	���6��	���7���������8�����������	�����������	����9��9����
����������������
��	���������
��������������9	���	��
�������#$%&'()*&�Q,���9	���������	��	���������	��������	�/)0&1230&,�����	�
�� 6�R��8�M�
���������������������	����	�	������	������������� �	� ����9	��� �	!�!���	�� �	�� �9������������	����	��6�S<G<I=<�LI?J�LAB>GIO�ETTDA=EO�AP�?F<�LAHHI@@IA>K@����	�	������	������6�U���M� �������	��� ��������	�� �	�� ��	���������	����	������
��V������	����9	���6�V������������	����������	��������������9	���������	�6�W
���������	���	�9����������������	!��X	��������������������������8�����	�9������	�����������������
����������	��������������������
��������9	��Y�W
����9�������Z��	�����������	!�	�������������	����Y��	�4��������������9��	���	��
�����������������������������	�����������	�4������������Y���[&'\]̂)_)̂]�3̂ �̀a'b̂\cd&̀])̂]�e3()*&�a0&2)'3̂�f\̂(2)$g()\̂h�)̂�i\̂]�j&3'k��U������	!��	��
��M��8�����
����������l����	!������-�	����	�������	����8��	�������!	7	!��	����8	�M���!	!�������������	��9��9����	����
��	!��������	����	�	�!����	��	����8����
����	���	��M���Y�������9	��������������m�������	�����l�������������	���9��9���������8	�M���!���
��LI?JK@�<=AO=I>n�><<C�?A�D<PO<G?�ED?@�E>C�GBO?BD<�EG?I=I?I<@�E	�����!����	!�	�������������	�Y�W���
���	����
������V�	�!���M���M��8�M�
��
��l�������������	���9��9�����������	������9���	�������9	�����������!	7��������������	�o����!��V�	�
��
��9!
������������	������!����	!���	��������9����	�������������Y�-�����M�����	�	9�������	�9����������
��	�
�M����
�	���pA>n�q<EGFK@�������������	�����9	���M�
	��
���Z��	!����9��9�������
����!�	7���	��	��M���9�������
��V������	��������9	���������!�����������Y���



��������	��
����������������������������	��������	������������������� �!��"���

�

#$%&'()%*+&�,-%*.(/���0
�������������	�������	���
��������1	�����	���	���������������	�1���	��
�	����
��������������	�����1	����
������	���	�������
��������	�������������	�2��������	�����1��	�������23�4�5&6&'�*%&7/�%.�%8&�9:;*%<�)(=�>;7)(�5&$)%*.(/�?.77*//*.(3�0
������������
���������	�	��1������	����	!��	���������	�	!����!������
������������������@1�������	���������AB1���C�	!�D���
�����
��	���1��������1	�����	������������������	���������1�����	����������������	����	��	��������������	���������������@1��E�0
��������1	�����	����������������
��F@1����	��G1��	�H�����	���������	��2
����	��
�	�
��������	!���
����������	�������������������	���!�	I���	���	��	���1������	���
�	����2�����	���������������	����	�������
��������1	��������	����E�0
��������1	���
������������������������	!������
��FGH���������	���	���
������	���	������	��2�
����������	�������	�������1�����	����������������	��J��	!��������E��4�5&:;&/%�K'*%%&(�?.77&(%/�6'.7�%8&�L)%*+&�#7&'*M)(�?.77;(*%<�.(�N-&M*6*M�O//;&/P�0
��������1	�������������2����	������	����	����������1���������������	�����������
��������������	�����1	��E�������������
��������	��F	���	��	����Q1�����������
��������	��	�����������������������������	��������	��������	����!1�������������	�1�������!��1����	��	����	�����������	�����B������
��1!
��
���FQ���������E�0
��������1	�����1���1����
�������������	����@1����2����	������	����	����������1����
��1!
��	��!�	��������2
�
���������1����
�	�2��R��	�2�
��
��!��1�E�0
��2�1������1���	�����������	���������2��R���1������	���	�����������������������1�������������������2�
�����2�������1���������	��J��	!����������	�������	!E�4�S)(=�#MT(.U$&=V&7&(%P��	������	�������	����
�	����
��������������	�����1	��������������I����C�	����R	�2���!��	������������1	�������	!�E�0
������
�������������C�	����R	�2���!���	����������������������	!�E�W	���1�	!����������C�	����R	�2���!���	��������������������1	�������	!����1�������	�������	��������������!	I	!��
������	������
��������	��
�	��	!��1��������������	�����1	��E��4�S*/%&(*(V�N&//*.(/P�������������������
����@1��������
��������1	���
��������		!������	���	�����1��������	��	��������������������R	�2���!�������1�������
��������������	�����1	����2�
��
��!�������	����	!����!���������B������������X������1	����������E���L&Y%�N%&-/��Z�����2�������2��
������������������
��1����	!��[��\��1�!������������2
�
����
��������1	��A�������
�������������������2	!�������
���
�����	!�	!������������E��0
���1�!���]̂_̀abb�cdd_eb�c�̂afgae�_h�cdd�ija�kgilmb�]̂g_̂gigab�gn�dgoji�_h�ija�kgilmb�hgncǹgcd�bgipcig_nq�ejg̀j��1���	������������B����������������r�s�����	�������
��	�J���2�������E�������	�����������
��������1	���
����������������	��	��
���������	����������	���������
���������	��	��2�1���	���������	�������
��	�A�����	���	!�	!����1��1�������1��	���1���������
���1�!���



��������	��
����������������������������	��������	������������������� �!������

�

�������"�������	��������������	��������������	��	��
�������	�������
������	���
�����������������	����	������	��
�����
���������������������"�������#����$�
�����	��%$����	������������	����������&��'�������	��������(��$�������)�	�!�������*+,�-�+.�/,+,�"�����0��(�&��)�#�1�23���#14��11�5�64�� (��78�2� "�3��9651���#14� 5�26��1�5�� 8��5��8"�(��(���#14���(#1�5�� 8#�(���"�1�1�)���22#21��1��#14�)���765�� 16562���3��(865��(6 �14��#14�)���765�� )656(#13�564��8(2��(6 �14��#14�)���765�� � 5#8�&�8:65���()#�#215�1#;6�(6 �14�1��136��#14�)���765��� 14865���5864����1#�7�(6 �14��#14�)���765�� :6;#��866���3#6�� �98#������#52����#�65�� )��#<�6�(6�8��7�5=����#14��865:�*�#86�>���/��.+-�� (6 �51)6�1�36�(2�����



[DISCUSSION DRAFT] 
118TH CONGRESS 

1ST SESSION H. R. ll 

To extend the Federal recognition to the Gabrielino/Tongva Nation, and 

for other purposes. 

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

Ms. KAMLAGER-DOVE introduced the following bill; which was referred to the 

Committee on llllllllllllll 

A BILL 
To extend the Federal recognition to the Gabrielino/Tongva 

Nation, and for other purposes. 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-1

tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, 2

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE. 3

This Act may be cited as the ‘‘Gabrielino/Tongva Na-4

tion Recognition Act of 2023’’. 5

SEC. 2. DEFINITIONS. 6

In this Act: 7

(1) MEMBER.—The term ‘‘member’’ means an 8

individual who is a citizen of the Tribe pursuant to 9

VerDate Nov 24 2008 10:07 Dec 14, 2023 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00001 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 C:\USERS\LMDALY\APPDATA\ROAMING\SOFTQUAD\XMETAL\11.0\GEN\C\KAMLAG_059
December 14, 2023 (10:07 a.m.)

G:\M\18\KAMLAG\KAMLAG_059.XML

g:\V\E\121423\E121423.006.xml           (902710|4)



2 

the Tribe’s Constitution, enacted February 17, 1

2007, and who is enrolled in the Tribe pursuant to 2

section 7 of this Act. 3

(2) SECRETARY.—The term ‘‘Secretary’’ means 4

the Secretary of the Interior. 5

(3) TRIBE.—The term ‘‘Tribe’’ means the 6

Gabrielino/Tongva Nation, also known as Gabrielino- 7

Tongva Indian Tribe and the Gabrielino-Tongva 8

Tribe. 9

SEC. 3. FINDINGS. 10

Congress finds the following: 11

(1) The traditional homelands of the 12

Gabrielino/Tongva Nation are the Los Angeles Basin 13

and the islands of Santa Catalina, San Nicholas, 14

San Clemente, and Santa Barbara, from Topanga 15

Canyon to Laguna Beach, from the San Gabriel 16

Mountains to the sea. Over 2,000 archaeological 17

sites in the in the Los Angeles County Basin attest 18

to the longevity of Gabrielino/Tongva presence in 19

their homelands. 20

(2) In 1891, in response to the impoverished 21

conditions experienced by Indian Tribes sent to the 22

California missions, Congress passed the Act of Jan-23

uary 12, 1891 (26 Stat. 711) commonly known as 24

the Mission Indian Relief Act, which created a spe-25

VerDate Nov 24 2008 10:07 Dec 14, 2023 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00002 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 C:\USERS\LMDALY\APPDATA\ROAMING\SOFTQUAD\XMETAL\11.0\GEN\C\KAMLAG_059
December 14, 2023 (10:07 a.m.)

G:\M\18\KAMLAG\KAMLAG_059.XML

g:\V\E\121423\E121423.006.xml           (902710|4)



3 

cial Indian agency with trust responsibilities over 1

‘‘Mission Indians’’ in California, including the 2

Gabrielino/Tongva. 3

(3) In 1928, members of the Gabrielino/Tongva 4

community, many of whom were then living in their 5

traditional homelands in the Los Angeles Basin, en-6

rolled during the California Indian census taken pur-7

suant to the Act of May 18, 1928 (45 Stat. 602), 8

which identified them as ‘‘Mission San Gabriel’’ or 9

‘‘Gabrielino’’ Indians and under the Federal jurisdic-10

tion of the Mission Indian Agency in Riverside, Cali-11

fornia. 12

(4) In 1952, a congressional report named the 13

Gabrielino/Tongva, known at that time as 14

‘‘Gabrieleño or San Gabriel Indians,’’ as one of the 15

Indian Tribes or bands identified in dealings with 16

the Bureau of Indian Affairs (82d Cong., 2d sess., 17

House, Report No. 2503). 18

(5) In 1972, Gabrielino/Tongva people received 19

settlement funds from the judgment of the Indian 20

Claims Commission in Docket 80 and 80-D under 21

the Act of September 21, 1968 (Public Law 90–507; 22

82 Stat. 860). 23

(6) In 1994, the State of California recognized 24

the Tongva in Assembly Joint Resolution 96, 25

VerDate Nov 24 2008 10:07 Dec 14, 2023 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00003 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 C:\USERS\LMDALY\APPDATA\ROAMING\SOFTQUAD\XMETAL\11.0\GEN\C\KAMLAG_059
December 14, 2023 (10:07 a.m.)

G:\M\18\KAMLAG\KAMLAG_059.XML

g:\V\E\121423\E121423.006.xml           (902710|4)



4 

chaptered by the California Secretary of State as 1

Resolution chapter 146, Statutes of 1994. The Joint 2

Resolution states that the State of California ‘‘rec-3

ognizes the Gabrielinos as the aboriginal tribe of the 4

Los Angeles Basin and takes great pride in recog-5

nizing the Indian inhabitance of the Los Angeles 6

Basin and the continued existence of the Indian 7

community’’. 8

(7) In 1999, the Coastal Gabrielino-Diegueno 9

Band of Mission Indians, the legal predecessor to 10

the Gabrielino/Tongva Nation, filed evidence of its 11

members’ Gabrielino ancestry with the Bureau of In-12

dian Affairs, using certificates of degree of Indian 13

blood prepared by the Act of September 21, 1968. 14

(8) In 2001, the Coastal Gabrielino-Diegueno 15

Band of Mission Indians reorganized, ultimately 16

changing its name to the Gabrielino/Tongva Nation, 17

and opening enrollment to individuals with 18

Gabrielino ancestry certified by the Bureau of In-19

dian Affairs. 20

(9) In 2013, the Los Angeles City Council, in 21

Resolution 13-1285, declared its support of the 22

Gabrielino/Tongva Nation in its efforts to restore a 23

government-to-government relationship with the 24

United States. 25

VerDate Nov 24 2008 10:07 Dec 14, 2023 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00004 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 C:\USERS\LMDALY\APPDATA\ROAMING\SOFTQUAD\XMETAL\11.0\GEN\C\KAMLAG_059
December 14, 2023 (10:07 a.m.)

G:\M\18\KAMLAG\KAMLAG_059.XML

g:\V\E\121423\E121423.006.xml           (902710|4)



5 

(10) In 2019, the Superior Court for the Coun-1

ty of Los Angeles found that the Gabrielino/Tongva 2

Nation was the legal successor in interest to the 3

Coastal Gabrielino-Diegueno Band of Mission Indi-4

ans. 5

(11) The Gabrielino/Tongva Nation presently 6

has a membership of more than 700 Tribal citizens, 7

all of whom descend from a bona fide Gabrielino/ 8

Tongva ancestor enumerated on a California Indian 9

Roll prepared by Bureau of Indian Affairs pursuant 10

to the Act of May 18, 1928, Act of May 24, 1950 11

(64 Stat. 189), and Act of September 21, 1968, and 12

whose ancestors have received Indian services, in-13

cluding education or health care, based upon their 14

status as Indians. 15

SEC. 4. FEDERAL RECOGNITION. 16

(a) IN GENERAL.—Federal recognition is extended to 17

the Tribe. 18

(b) EFFECT OF FEDERAL LAWS.—Except as other-19

wise provided in this Act, all Federal laws (including regu-20

lations) of general application to Indians and Indian 21

Tribes, including the Act of June 18, 1934 (25 U.S.C. 22

5101 et seq.) (commonly known as the ‘‘Indian Reorga-23

nization Act’’), shall apply to the Tribe and each member. 24

VerDate Nov 24 2008 10:07 Dec 14, 2023 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00005 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 C:\USERS\LMDALY\APPDATA\ROAMING\SOFTQUAD\XMETAL\11.0\GEN\C\KAMLAG_059
December 14, 2023 (10:07 a.m.)

G:\M\18\KAMLAG\KAMLAG_059.XML

g:\V\E\121423\E121423.006.xml           (902710|4)



6 

SEC. 5. FEDERAL SERVICES AND BENEFITS. 1

(a) IN GENERAL.—Beginning on the date of enact-2

ment of this Act, the Tribe and each member shall be eligi-3

ble for all services and benefits provided by the United 4

States to Indians and Federally recognized Indian Tribes, 5

without regard to— 6

(1) the existence of a reservation for the Tribe; 7

or 8

(2) the location of the residence of any member 9

on or near an Indian reservation. 10

(b) SERVICE AREA.—For purposes of the delivery of 11

services and benefits to members, and in regard to land 12

and the transfer of land as set forth in section 8 of this 13

Act, the service area of the Tribe shall be considered to 14

be the area comprised of Los Angeles County, in the State 15

of California. Such services and benefits shall be provided 16

notwithstanding the establishment of a reservation or ac-17

quisition of additional land after the date of enactment 18

of this Act. 19

SEC. 6. REAFFIRMATION OF RIGHTS. 20

(a) IN GENERAL.—Nothing in this Act diminishes 21

any right or privilege of the Tribe or any member that 22

existed before the date of enactment of this Act. 23

(b) CLAIMS OF TRIBE.—Except as otherwise pro-24

vided in this Act, nothing in this Act alters or affects any 25

legal or equitable claim of the Tribe to enforce any right 26

VerDate Nov 24 2008 10:07 Dec 14, 2023 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00006 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 C:\USERS\LMDALY\APPDATA\ROAMING\SOFTQUAD\XMETAL\11.0\GEN\C\KAMLAG_059
December 14, 2023 (10:07 a.m.)

G:\M\18\KAMLAG\KAMLAG_059.XML

g:\V\E\121423\E121423.006.xml           (902710|4)



7 

or privilege reserved by, or granted to, the Tribe that was 1

wrongfully denied to, or taken from, the Tribe before the 2

date of enactment of this Act. 3

SEC. 7. MEMBERSHIP ROLL. 4

(a) IN GENERAL.—The Tribe shall submit to the Sec-5

retary within thirty days after the date of enactment of 6

this Act, a membership roll consisting of the name of each 7

individual enrolled as a member of the Tribe. 8

(b) DETERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP.—The quali-9

fications for inclusion on the membership roll of the Tribe 10

shall be determined in accordance with the Tribe’s Con-11

stitution, enacted February 17, 2007, any amendments or 12

changes to the Constitution, or Tribal laws pertaining to 13

membership. Upon receipt of the roll, the Secretary shall 14

immediately publish notice of such in the Federal Reg-15

ister. 16

(c) MAINTENANCE OF ROLL.—The Tribe shall have 17

the sole authority and responsibility to maintain the mem-18

bership roll of the Tribe. 19

SEC. 8. TRANSFER OF LAND. 20

(a) INITIAL RESEVATION.—Within ninety days from 21

the date of enactment of this Act, and notwithstanding 22

any other provision of law, the Secretary shall acquire and 23

take into trust for the benefit of the Tribe title to land 24

VerDate Nov 24 2008 10:07 Dec 14, 2023 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00007 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 C:\USERS\LMDALY\APPDATA\ROAMING\SOFTQUAD\XMETAL\11.0\GEN\C\KAMLAG_059
December 14, 2023 (10:07 a.m.)

G:\M\18\KAMLAG\KAMLAG_059.XML

g:\V\E\121423\E121423.006.xml           (902710|4)



8 

identified by the Tribe that is located within the service 1

area of the Tribe, not to exceed 300 acres. 2

(b) ELIGIBILITY.—Lands taken into trust will be 3

deemed part of the restoration of lands for an Indian 4

Tribe that is restored to Federal recognition pursuant to 5

section 20(b)(1)(B)(iii) of the Indian Gaming Regulatory 6

Act (25 U.S.C. 2719(b)(1)(B)(iii)). 7

(c) ADDITIONAL LANDS.—The Secretary may acquire 8

additional land for the benefit of the Tribe pursuant to 9

section 5 of the Act of June 18, 1934 (25 U.S.C. 5108) 10

(commonly known as the ‘‘Indian Reorganization Act’’). 11

(d) TRIBAL FEE LANDS.—Notwithstanding any 12

other provision of law, without further approval, ratifica-13

tion, or authorization by the United States, the Tribe may 14

lease, sell, convey, warrant, or otherwise transfer all or 15

any part its interest in any real property that is (1) not 16

located within the exterior boundaries of the Reservation, 17

and (2) not held in trust by the United States for the 18

benefit of the Tribe. 19

VerDate Nov 24 2008 10:07 Dec 14, 2023 Jkt 000000 PO 00000 Frm 00008 Fmt 6652 Sfmt 6201 C:\USERS\LMDALY\APPDATA\ROAMING\SOFTQUAD\XMETAL\11.0\GEN\C\KAMLAG_059
December 14, 2023 (10:07 a.m.)

G:\M\18\KAMLAG\KAMLAG_059.XML

g:\V\E\121423\E121423.006.xml           (902710|4)




